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While they pondered, their armies rested and regained their strength after
two months of steady campaigning. Both sides were suffering from a limited
diet, though the problem was more severe in the Rebel ranks than in the Federal.
Confederate t.oops were defending a populace with limited food resources.
Packages from home helped to an extent, the basic diet was one of corn bread
and pork. On occasion, fresh vegetables could be purchased but this source
quickly disappeared as supply was exceeded by the demand. Union troops
fared much better as they had greater variety in their diet including hard
tack, salt pork, bacon, fresh beef, coffee, sugar, bread, Indian corn, potatoes
and rice. In addition, there were dried or desicated vegetables and concentrated
milk from the commissary. Neither of these was met with much favor by the U.S.
troops who referred to them as desecrated vegetables and consecrated mi]k.26
Scurvy was beginning to become a major problem in both armies by early July due
to the lack of fresh vegetables. Fortunately, the blackberry crop was heavy
that year and it provided relief, and availability of green corn and roasting

ears eliminated the prob’-em.27

During the five-day period from the 10th to 15th, the two armies fraternized.
Southern tobacco was traded for Northern coffee. Newspapers were exchanged.
Along the river, soldiers from both sides stripped and plunged into the river
for bathing and swimming--the first opportunity in several weeks. In the even-
ing, Regimental bands and singing groups would entertain themselves and their
opponents.28 This idyllic period was, however, not without its more serious
activities. The Federals took advantage of the bathing to scout out likely
fords or crossing places. A field order was issued July 11 by General Johnston
warning against intercourse between the Confederate and Union picketts since
"engineers of the enemy mingle with the bathers to sound out the river bottom.29

26. Aikman, "Kennesaw Sketches" Atlanta Historical Bulletin, (1975), 73.

27. 1bid, 75 and Report of Captain T. 0'Conner, 33rd New Jersey Infantry
Regiment, ORs Vol. 38, Pt. 2, p. 229-30.

28. Carter, Siege of Atlanta, 183-84.

29. General Field Order No. 3, HQ's Army of Tennessee, July 11, 1864, ORs 38,
part 5, p. 876.
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Activity during the period was not totally devoted to relaxation. The

pontoon bridge at Sope Creek was replaced by a trestle bridge. The pontoons
were moved to either Powers or Paces Ferry. A single pontoon bridge was
located at Powers Ferry and two bridges were placed at Paces. As each bridge
vias completed, more Union men and material were sent across the river to
strengthen the positions. However, the majority of the Federal troops remained
on the west bank. Finally, Shermar was ready to move and on July 16 and 17,
Federal forces crossed the river. 0On July 20, the Battle of Peachtree Creek
marked the beginning of the battle for Atlanta.

Major General Thomas and the Army of the Cumberland crossed over at Paces
and Powers Ferry on the 16th and 17th. With the shift of McPherson to Roswell
the Army of the Cumberland had become the right wing of the Union forces.
Schefield and the Army of Ohio already across at Phillips Ferry formed the
center. McPherson's Army of the Tennessee crossed over at Roswell and then
swung in an arc that placed him astride the Georgia Railroad somewhere between
Decatur and Stone Mountain. They destroyed the railroad and assured that no
reinforcements or supplies would reach Johnston from Richmond. A quick study
of a map of the Atlante vicinity reveals that McPherson had 3 or 4 times the
distance to travel that Thomas and Schofield did. During this gigantic game
of crack the whip, an attack by Johi'ston could result in the Confederates
splitting the Federal force. However, since Thomas's Army of the Cumberland
totaled nearly 50,000 men and he had a reputation for military skill, courage,
and persistence, Sherman felt confident Thomas could deal with the Rebels. By
Surnday evening, July 17, Sherman's forces were across the river and, as usual,
his lines enveloped and overiapped Johnston's defenses south of Peachtree

Creek.

Johnston's plan was to attack the Federal force as they crossed Peachtree
Creek. If the attack was successful, they would exploit it and push the Union
back to the river where they could be cut up during attempts tc recross the
river. If the attack was not successful, the Faderal advai:c: would be stalled
and when it began again and approached the City of Atlanta, the Confederates
could attack the most exposed Union flank with all the troops available.
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However, Johnston was not to have the opportunity to direct either of these
alternatives. On the evening of July 17, he was relieved from command. John
B. Hood was named to replace him. In the eyes of Jefferson Davis, Johnston
had failed to halt the Union advarce and nad indicated a lack of confidence
that he could defeat and repel the Union Forces.

Jefferson Davis had grown increasingly irritated with Johnston's campaign.
He replaced him with a general who would stand and fight and attack rather than
retreat. Sherman greeted the news with some pleasure. Several of his general
officers had attended West Point with Hood and described him as bold to the
point of rashness and courageous to the extreme. To Sherman, this meant fight -
"this is just what we wanted, to fight in open ground, on anything like equal
terms instead of being forced to run up against prepared intrenchments, but
at the same time the enemy having Atlanta behind him could choose the time and

place of attack and....mass a superior force on our weakest points."30

And Hood did fight. In the next six weeks, a series of battles took place
on Peachtree Creek, July 20, the Battle of Atlanta, in which McPherson was ,
killed on July 22, and the Rattle of Ezra Church on July 28. Then during August,
the siege and bombardment of Atlanta tock place. On September 2, menaced by the
threat that Sherman would cut the last railroad into Atlanta and isolate the
town and his army, Hood withdrew to the south. The Union army entered the city

on September 2, (1864).

In the six weeks after July 19, military activity along the Chattahoochee
had nearly ceased with two exceptions. Sherman's dependence on the W&A Railroad
for supplies and transportation of troops continued and to this end he sought
to repair the railroad bridge across the river. The engineers charged with
maintaining this l1ifeline had developed skilis that enabled them to reconstruct
damaged or destroyed track or rebuild bridges with incredible speed. Two days
after the troops reached Vinings or Paces Ferry, the railroad was repaired to

" that point.

30. Sherman, Memoirs, 11, 72.
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With the Union push against Atlanta proper the engineers were given the
order to bridge the Chattahoochee and extend the railroad to the rear of the
Federal Army. The request presented the most formidable challenge of the
entire campaign--to construct a railroad bridge 780 feet long and 90 feet high.
Col. W. W. Wrignt of the Construction Corps fortunately had one of the best
military engineers in the service, E. C. Smeed, in his organization. Smeed and
his experienced crews set to work immediately. Using timber cut in the nearby
woods and building on the stone piers of the former railroad bridge, the new
32 By August 5, trains were arriving in the

3

bridge was completed in 4% days.
rear of the Army of the Cumberland.

As the month of August wore on and three separate Union cavalry raids
failed to cut the railroad into Atlanta from the south, Sherman realized ihat
he must shift his army to the southwest of the city and move against the rail-
road and the Confederate entrenchments defending them. To this purpose, the
Federals left their trenches and marched away to the West and south. OQOne Corps,
the 20th under Maj. General Henry Slocum, was dispatched to the Chattahoochee
to guard the W&A Railroad. Slocum's men moved into the Confederate defensive
works west of the river. The Confederate Army under Hood moved out to meet
the newest Union threat. By September 1, Hood realized that Atlanta was lost
and withdrew. The city was surrendered on September 2. Sherman proceeded
during September to turn Atlanta into an armed camp and expelled all or most of

the citizens.

In late September, Hood marched north with the intention tn destroy the
railroad and isolate the Union forces. Sherman, anticipating Hood's move had
already strengthened the defenses along the W&A Railroad and had sent Thomas
and the Army of the Cumberiand to Chattanooga. During the first three weeks
of QOctober, Sherman pursued Hood north leaving the 20th Corps to hold and occupy
Atlanta. On Octcber 26, he broke off contact and left the defense of Tennessee

31. The role of the railroad construction corps in the Civil War has beer treated
in George Turner's book, Victory Rode the Rails: The Strategic Place of Railroads
in the Civil War. Originally published in 1953 by Bobbs Merrill, it was reprinted
in 1972 by Greenwood Press of Westport, Conn. in 1972.

32. Sherman stated that it took 6 days, while Herman Haupt in his reminiscences
published in 1901 stated it took 4%. Haupt was the Chief Railway Engineer of the

Civil MHar.
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to George Thomas and his Army of the Cumberland. ODuring October, all sick and
wounded, as well as all unnecessary supplies were sent back to Chattanocga.
Sherman retraced his way toward Atlanta destroying the railroad as he moved
south. After crossing the Chattahoochee for the third time the Union forces
burned the bridges so carefully built 3 - 4 months earlier. On November 15,
the famous or infamous March to the Sea began.

Hood meanwhile led the Army of Tennessee to disaster at Franklin on Ncvember
30, and near Nashville, Tennessee on December 16-16. By January the remnants
of his army were at Tupelo, Mississippi where he turned over command to
Beauregard. Hood had done his best, but to the men in the ranks he never had
commanded the love that Joe Johnston had. As they retreated from Nashville
in late December, they put new words to the old song, The Yellow Rose of Texas:

“And now I'm going southward
For my heart is full of woe
I'm going back to Georgia

To find my 'Uncle Joe'.

You may sing about your dearest maid
And sing of Rosalie

But the gallant Hood of Te;gs

Played Hell in Tennessee".”

With the end of the war in 1865, residents along the river began to put their
lives back together. Ferries and bridges that had been destroyed were rebuilt.
Farms and mills that had suffered damage were put back into operation. The
pattern of life returned to normal in the decade after 1865. Evidence of the
Civil War along the Chattahoochee remained in the earthworks, both Union and

Confederate, and in the other flotsam left behind by the two armies.

& 33. Garrett, Atlanta and Environs, I, 644.
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CHAPTER V
TOWNS AND SETTLEMENTS ALONG THE RIVER

Settlement along the Chattahcochee untii the last two decades tended to be
scattered rather than concentrated in villages, apartments or subdivisions.
Small settlements developed near mills or ferries during the 19th Century but
these never evolved into towns or villages. Identifiable towns within the
study area can be counted on the fingers of one hand--Standing Peachtree,
Vinings, Roswell and Suwanee 01d Town. Of these only Roswell and Vinings
remain today and the latter is more location than town. The other two have
long since disappeared. Standing Peachtree, however, has left as a legacy a
name that has become as well known as the City of Atlanta.

The first known reference to Standing Peachtree dates to May 27, 1782, when
Governor John Martin of Georgia wrote to General Andrew Pickens reporting that
he had heard that a large body of Cowetas {Creeks) were meeting at Standing
Peachtree in preparation for an attack in concert with the Cherckees on the
frontiers of Georgia.] The records of the Executive Council of Georgia for
that same year refer to a payment to Mr. John Brandon for his secret services
in determining the situation of the Indians at Standing Peachtree.z

With the close of the American Revolution, mention of Standing Peachtree
disappeared. Llocated on both sides of the Chattahoochee and extending up Peach-
tree and Nancy Creeks, the village had been a trading center and point of entry
into the lands of the Creeks and Cherokees west of the river since before 1750.
As noted earlier in this study the lands on both sides of the river above ond
below the junction of Peachtree Creek were in dispute between first, the Creeks
and Cherokees, and later, between the State cf Georgia and the Cherokees. This
dispute centered on the location of the boundary between the tribes. Attempts
to resolve this boundary question during the 1820's often referred to Standing
Peachtree, but provided no information on the size or extent of the village.

1. Franklin M. Garrett, Atlanta and Environs: a Chronicle of its People and
Events, I, pp. 10-11.

2. Ibid, p 11.
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In early 1814, Lt. George Gilmer was sent to Standing Peachtree to ectablish
~a fort or outpost against the Creeks. He noted the presence of a "town" on
both sides of the river, but offered no estimate as to size. Gilmer does at
. one point refer to eleven warriors as well as town people and noted that there

were women and children in the vi]]age.3

Gilmer's mission was to establish an outpost to protect supply lines to
General Andrew Jackson in his campaign against the Creek Indians and to defend
the frontier against attacks by the Creeks. To this end he was dispatched tec
Standing Peachtree in 1814 arriving there on March 14. Gilmer's command con-
sisted of 22 recruits armed with refuse drill musketsq, a small quantity of
powder and some unmolded lead. Gilmer was to build a fort, but he "had never
seen a fort, and had no means of knowing how to obey the order, but what I
could get from Duane's Tactics."5 Since the fort was never tested, Gilmer's
ability cannot be judged. Within two months, however, he had built two hewed log
block houses, six dwelling houses, a framed storehouse and a bridge a half mi'e
from the fort. Whether a palisade was constructed is not known, but Gilmer
refers to preparing a ditch "for the palisades of the fort.“6 A1l this work
went for naught for on March 27, Jackson defeated the Creeks at Horseshoe Bend

in Alabama. In August, 1814, the Treaty of Fort Jackson was cencluded.

In addition to Fort Standing Peachtree, Gilmer was charged with establishing
a boat yard. The plan was to construct flatboats to carry supplies down to
Fort Mitchell, near present day Columbus, Georgia. Fort Mitchell was headquarters

for Gernz2ral John Floyc who was commanding Georgia troops against the Creek Indians
in Alabama. Ten boats were to be built by James !Mc Montgomery and his craftsmen.

3. Gilmer, Sketches of Some of the First Settlers of Upper Georgia, of the Cherokees,
and of the Author, 198-99. Written in 1855 Gilmer may have overestimated the number
of people. It is possible that the settlements on each side of the river had more

than 100 people apiece.

4. Refuse drill muskets are thos deemed not usable in active warfare, but suitable
for drilling.

5. Gilmer, Sketches of Some of the First Settlers, p. 196.

.. .6. E. Katherine Anderson, "James Mc Montgomery of Standing Peachtree", The Atlanta
K,/ Historical Bulletin, No. 12, (December 1937, pp. 22-23, Gilmer, Sketches of Some of

the First Settlers, p. 197.
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However, only five boats were constructed before the proposal was canceled due
in part to the difficulty of floating laden flatboats over the falls and shoals
of the river above the fall line and also to the end of hostilities. The boat-
yard was located on the soutr side of Peachtree Creek while the fort stood north

of the creek on the high kno]1.7

By the end of the summer 1814, Gilmer and Montgomery, the small centingent of
troops and boat builders, had ieft Standing Peachtree. What happened to the
structures that made up the fort is not known. In 1821, when Henry County was
surveyed prior to distribution through 2 land lottery, the plats for the area
did not show any fortifications or structures. The Indian village on the east
side of the river may have remained for a few more years, but with the ceding of
all land east of the Chattaiioochee tc Georgia the residents woulud have left the
area. Whether the settlement west of the river survivad into the 1830's and the

period of Cherokee removal is not known.

Standing Peachtree continued to serve as a reference point in the years after
i814. During the period it existed as a fort, a road was constructed to lirk it
with Fort Daniel near Hog Mountain in present day Gwinnett Ccunty. This road runs
along the vidge that extends from northeast to southwest, roughly parallel to the
river. Wran the road reached modern day Buckhead it followed present day West
Paces Ferry and Moores Mill Roads to the fort.8 The alignment has changed very
Tittle. World famous Peachtree Road follows essentially the same route. The
road to Standing Peachtree brought setilers into the area. On April 5, 1825, a
post office was established. During its 17-year existence three different members

of the Montgomery family served as Postmaster.

James Mc Montgomery returned to the vicinity of Stending Peachtree in 1821-22.
He built a house on what is now Bolton Road in land lot 230 of the 17th District.
In 1837, he was given permission to establish a ferry across the Chattahoochee at
Standing Peachtree. Located below the junction of Peachtree Creek and the

7. Fort Committee, “The Fort at Standing Peachtree", Georgia Magazine, Vol 10,
(December 1966-January 1967, p. 22. Garrett, Atlanta and Environs: Vol. 1, p. 14.

8. Garrett, Atlanta and Environs: Vol 1, p. 15.
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Chattahoochee River, the ferry had its east landing in tand lot 231 and the west
landing in land 1ot 1023. The ferry operation continued until Montgomery's death
in 1842. By 1850, it was in operation as DeFoors Ferry and continued to operate

until after the Civil War.

Standing Peachtree was first an Indian settlement, then a short lived military
installation, and finally a recognized geographic location and ferry site. Except
for the aboriginal period the area was never a town in the normal definition of

the term.

In the years after 1840 u smal® settlement, Bolton, developed on the Western
and Atlentic Railroad. It was named for Charles L. Bolton, one of the first
commissioners of the W & W Railroad. By 1880 Bolton, or Boltonville or Fulten
boasted a population of 100 with two churches and a common school. There were
several factories nearby utilizing Peachtree Creek and the Chattahoochee as a
power source. 4ajor'products were furniture, bricks, flour, meal and wood.9 Like
its predécessor, Bolton, never developed into more than a rail stop and post

office.

Hardy Pace, one of the earliest operators of a ferry across the Chattahoochee,
began buying up land shortly after his arrival in the area in the 1820's. By the
late 1830's he had accumu]atedvsome 10,000 acres stretching from Buckhead to
Smyrna. In 1839, Pace moved his family across the river into Cobb County where
he built a 17-room home. The settlement that developed nearby as a result of the
construction of the railroad became known as Vinings in hcnor of one of the
engineers. The town remained small. During the Civil War, it served as a supply
depot for the Army of the Cumberland as it prepared to cross the river. In 1864,
Hardy Pace died and was buried in the Pace Family Cemetery in Vinings. Known
originally as Vinings Station, it was renamed Vinings in 1904. Vinings, like
Bclton, remained more a crossroads and railroad station than a town. Today it
jc a locality fighting to retain its identity in the sprawling suburbs of Atlanta.

9. Ibid, II, p. 13.

10. W. F. St. John, "“Vinings History" - Journal Conctitution Magazine, April 26,
1970, p. 31. :

76

10



Another location struggling to survive ana maintain an identity in developing
metropolitan Atlanta is Roswell. FEstablished by Roswell King as the town adjacent
to the manufacturing complex along Vickery or Big Creek, Roswell was carefuily
planned. King first saw the area in 1829 and noted its ideal location for
establishment of a manufacturing complex and town. After completing his business
at Dahlonega and in the gcld fields, King returned to Darien, Georgia. During the
next seven or eight years he developed his plans for the town and factory. In
1837, King, his son Barrington and his family moved to the plateau above the creek
and river where they built a substantial lcg cabin. The following year Roswell
King cffered homesites in his new town to friends on the cocast. By 1838, a dam,
mill race, and factory had been established on Vickery Creek.

The first settlers of Roswell were a very similar group. Presbyterian by
faith, they l1ived along the coast of Georgia, and many, including Roswell King,
had come from Connecticut or had their roots there. Among these early settlers
were the Builoch, Dunwoody, Pratt, Smith and Elliot families. On October 20, 1839,
the Roswell Presbyterian Church was organized with fifteen Charter members, includ-
ing Roswell King who was then 74 years old. By that date the first of the major
houses in the community--Primrose Cottage--had been completed. Built by King for
his widowed daughter, Mrs. Eliza King Hand, it still stands on Mimosa Bou]evard.

Other houses followed in rapid succession. Bulloch Hall, Barrington Hall,
Mimosa Hall, Great Oaks and the Roswell Presbyterian Church were all completed
between 1840 and 1842. Bulloch Hall was built by James Bulloch from wood cut
on his property--some 16 acres overlooking the valley of the Chattahoochee.
Barrington Hall was built by Barrington King on a six acre plot near the town
square. Dumioody Hall was a wood frame structure with the same floor plan as
Bulloch Hall next door. On the night of its housewarming, the structure burned
to the ground. It was rebuilt in 1847 by the Dunwoodys using brick scored to
resemble stone. Named Phoenix Hall for the mythical bird that arose out of the
ashes its name was later changed to Mimosa because of the mimosa trees on the
grounds. Great Oaks, the home of Rev. Nathaniel Pratt, the first minister of
the Presbyterian Church, was located across from the church which Dr. Pratt
served from 1840 until his death in 1879. The Presbyterian Church, completed in
1840, was not only the religious center of the community but also the geographic
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center. The town was incorporated in 1854. It was described as an area of one
mile in every direction from the Presbyterian Church in said Vi]1age,]]

The development of Roswell was not haphazard but rather reflected an early
example of Town planning. The town was laid out with wide streets, a town square,
had provision of two churches, and an academy. Whether the planning was done
solely by Roswell and Barrington King or whether they were influenced by Willis
Bali, a builder-architect from Connecticut, who deéigned Barrington Hall and
assisted in the design of Bulloch and Mimosa (Dunwoody or Phoenix) Hall is not
known. Whatever the contribution of each, the character of the town that exists
today had been determined by 1844 when Roswell King died. It was, and is, a
new England village dominated by Greek Revival architecture not only in the
"great houses” and the Presbyterian Church, but also in some of the structures
associated with the factory including the first element of the Roswell Stores,
the salt box residences for the workers, and the "01d Bricks", an early apartment

house used by the mill emp]og,/ees.]2

At the same time that the homes of the Bullochs, Dunwoodys, and Kings were
being built, homes for the mill employees, a company store or commissary, and
the first mill building were completed. The "01d Bricks" are two units of
apartments, one containing four and the other six apartments. Built about 1840,
they housed mill empleyees. Other employees 1ived in individual houses of a
modified New Ergland Salt Box design on Factory Hill along present day Mill,
Millview, Sloan and Vickery Streets. The employees as well as the mill owners
utilized the commissary or store on the east side of the town square. Built of
brick with axe hewn timbers the structure was added to as commercial activities
in Roswell increased over the next 60 years. Finally there was the mill itself,
the only structure remaining from the original Roswell Manufacturing Company
incorporated in 1839. A two story brick building, it is now abandoned.

During the remainder of the 1840's, other structures were built. These
reflected or complimented the plan and style of the village. Allenbrook, built
about 1845, was the office and residence of the manager of the Ivy Woolen Mills

11. William R. Mitchell, Jr., "Historic Area Study: A Plan to Preserve Roswell's
Historical Character" (1973), p. 23, 29, 33, and 37; Martin and Devane, Roswell
Historic Homes and Landmarks, no pagination; Martin, The History of Bulloch Hall
and Rosweil, GA (Roswell, Historic Roswell Inc., 1973), p. 10-17. .

12. Mitchell, "Historic Area Study", p. 8-9.

13. 1bid., pp 37-38 and 43-44.
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located near the mouth of Vickery Creek. The two story brick house has heart of
pine floor boards 12 inches wide. Barrington King built Holly Hill for Robert
A. Lewis, his cousin by marriage during the first half of the 1840's. Designed
originally as a summer home it was of the raised cottage style popular .. the
coast. Charmed by the climate and the peopie the Lewises became permanent
residents from 1845 until 1855 when they left Georgia because of the increasing
tension of the sectional s'cr-ugg;ﬂe.]4 Archibald Smith came tc Roswell in 1838
not to invest in or operate the mills, but to farm. Between 1842-36, he built a
simple yet elegant two story frame structure on the road to Alpharetta. Presently,
all the original outbuildings including kitchen, barn, corn crib and servant's
quarters are still standing. The property is still owned by the Smith Family.

Roswell during the first 20 to 25 years of its existence led a placid and
productive existence. The manufacturing complex grew in size and diversity while
the town developed into a community of about 4,000 inhabitants. Most of the
mill employees were women with only a few men or blacks employed. With the out-
break of the Civil War, the woolen, cotton and flour mills along the creek con-
verted over to production in support of the Confederacy. In July 1864, the war
arrived in Roswell. The factories and many of the employees' residences were
burned and most of the employees were sent to Marietta for transportation out of
the state. The great houses were not destroyed and often not even severely
damaged. The owners such as Barrington King refugeesd to points well removed
from the battle area such as Augusta, Fort Valley, Madison, Savannah or Greensboro.
Dr. Pratt, minister of the Presbyterian Church, remained. The church was turned
into a hospital as were Mimosa Hall and the Bricks. Barrington Hall and Great
Oaks were used as headquarters for General Cfficers. As a staging area between
July 12 and 17, Roswell was unwilling host to some 45,000 men, 6000 mules and
1000 wagons."5 Before and after that week other troop units, wagons, and mules
passed through staying for a day or less. During August, Roswell was the main
supply base for one of the three federal armies besieging Atlanta. It suffered
very little additional damage from Union activities in September, Cctober and the

first half of November.

14. 1Ibid, p. 29; and Martin and DeVane, Roswell Historic Homes, no page number.

15. Rev. Prate to Barrington S. King (18€4) as cited by Martin, History of Bulloch
Hall, p. 31.
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In June 1865 Barrington King returned to Roswell and began work cn repairing
and restoring the manufacturing complex. Except for destruction of crops and loss
of fences and other wooden material consumed by the troops for cooking fires or
shelter damage to the residences was limited. The town soon recovered and entered
into another period of tranquility. The mills remained the major employer in the
town. In 1929, a destructive fire swept through most of the Roswell Manufacturing
Company leaving only the Scuthern Mills Building constructed in 1882. Roswell's
character began to change as the motor car made it more attractive as a satellite
community of Atlanta. By the late 1960's, the clearly defined boundaries between
the communities of Roswell, Sandy Springs, and Marietta began to blur. Roswell,
however, continues to retain a different and unique identity based oin the presence
of a rich and viable historic heritage going back 140 years.

The last of the four towns along the Chattahocchee was already old when
Roswell was new. Suwanee 01d Town 1ike Standing Peachtree was an Indian town oft
referred to in the early documents. A trading center, it existed on both sides
of tﬁé river and along the banks of Suwanee Creek. A branch of the Hightower Trail
may have reached the town. 1In the last decades of the 18th Century it was the
residence of Thomas Cordery and his Cherokee wife Susannah. Sometime between 1800
and 1830 it ceased to exist as its inhabitants moved west into the Cherckee Nation.
There is no above ground evidence of the town today.

Until the middie of the 1960's, the Chattahoochee corridor from Peachtree

» Creek to Buford Dam was, with a few exceptions, still a rural area. Today the

lower half from approximately Holcomb Bridge south has become urbanized and
develcped. Apartment and townhouses, residential communities, shopping complexes
and office parks are more and more in evidence. For better or for worse, progress
has caught up with the Chattahoochee River as it flows past the site of McAfee's
Bridge, Martin's Ferry, Roswell and Shallowford, the ruins of the paper mills on
Sope Creek, Hardy Paces Mill and Ferry and the site of Montgomery'’s Ferry. Above
Holcomb Bridge Road the area is still primarily rural. Its land use has changed
Tittle since George Morgan Waters and John Rogers and his sons farmed the land

150 years ago. Georgia Highway 20 crosses the river on a bridge near where Orrs
Ferry once carried travelers over the Chattahcochee.
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The history of the river remains. It has flowed across the land from the
- time of the Cherokees to the Civil War to the development of industry and hydro-
electric power. It continues to flow as the use of land along its banks evolves
© into what will be tomorrow's history.

. 81



APPENDIX A
Properties on or Elibible for Nomination to the National Register
within the Chattahoochee River Corridor

As a part of the Historic Resource Study of the twe-mile wide Chattahoochee
Corridor, an evaluation of properties eligible for the National Register was to
be prepared. Several locally or regionally significant properties have already
been placed on the Natiocnal Register of Historic Places. These include Roswell
Historic District and Sope Creek Ruins Historic District. There are several
other districts or structures that may be eligibie for nomination to the National
Register of Historic Places. In each case the property is not federal property
and the nomination would be a2 joint federal/state project. These are set out

below:

Rogers Historic District - The district would ercompass structures and sites
relating to the Jehn Rogers Family. John Rogers and his sons played a prominent
role in the histery of the Cherokee Indians during the years 1810-1838 and in the
local history of Forsyth County until efter the Civil War. The historic district
would include the John Rogers house constructed prior to 1830, the William Rogers
hcuse, Rogers Bridge, Rogers Bridge Road in Gwinnett and Fulton Counties, the
site of the Rogers Ferry and the historic road leading to it on both sides of
the river, Mt. Zion Church, Rogers Cemetery and other sites related to the Rogers

family.

Suwanee 01d Town Archeological District or Site - If sufficient archeological
resources remain, this site as one of the few Cherckee Towns along the river, would
merit inclusion on the National Register. Determination of eligibility would be
based on intensive archeological investigation.

Neely Farm Property - Presently owned by Howard Hoffman this property
contains a variety of resources that may qualify for the National Register includ-
ing the Nesbitt House that predates the Civil War, the farm complex including the
main house, barns and tenant nhouses, and several archeological sites. A special
cultural resource study of the Neely Farm property will be needed to more clearly
define the historical and archeological significance of the property.
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Expand Roswell Historic Bistrict - Expand the historic district nomination
prepared in 1973 to include satellite areas such as the ruins of Ivy or Laurel
Mill, Allenbrook, Lovers Leap, Rock Shelters, the Raised Cottage and a second
cottage on Roswell Road. All these are located between the center of Roswell and
the Chattahoochee. North of the town square along Alpharetta and Canton Street
are other structures including the Smith House and outbuildings, Minton House,
Methodist Church and Cemetery and Naylor Hall. A1l these structures are ante-
bellum and are discussed in William Mitchell's "Historic Area Study of Roswell".
Because all but Ivy Mill Ruins and Alienbrook are in private ownership this
nomination should involve the State of Georgia, Historic Roswell Inc., and the

National Park Service.

| Morgan Falls Power Plant and Dam - At the time of its construction in 1902-03
this was one of the largest hydroelectric plants in Georgia. The original
generating equipment is still in use. Exterior changes to the dam have been
limited to the installation of taintor gates in 1959-60 that raised the storage
capacity of the dam by eight feet. As an engineering work it merits nomination.
This should be accomplished in cooperation with Georgia Power Company.

These five nominations reflect the best judgement of the writer of properties
within the corridor that may qualify for the National Register. In each case the
properties are privately owned and the National Park Service should work with the
State of Georgia in preparing the nomination forms.
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' APPENDIX B
Additional Research Needed

Soon after beginning the Historical Resource Study it was obvious that to
make the history of the Chattahoochee River understandable it would be necessay
to understand the history of Gecrgia. For this reason the study became more
general and less site specific. Because of time constraints research concentrated
on printed primary and secondary sources rather than the raw data contained in
county courthouses and Tocal historical societies. Also interview with local
historians were generally not undertaken.

Future research should concentrate on these sources. Much of the work with
local historians can be accomplished by the staff of the Chattahoochee River HRA
through the oral histcry program they are undertaking. Among the individuals who
should be contacted are the following:

Mr. Don Shadburn, teacher at the Otwe!l Middle School in Cumming, who is very
knowledgeable regarding the Cherckee settlements along the river in Forsyth
County. HMr. Shadburn head- the Forsyth County Historical and Geneclogical
Society. At present he is completing a two volume history of the Cherokees
along the Chattahoochee.

Information on the John Rogers Family can be gathered from a variety of
sources including Cheryl Bowlin who with her husband, has restcred the

John Rogers house. Ronald Rogers, Attorney in Atlanta lives in the William
Rogers house. Gladys Bell has considerable knowledge regarding the history
of Zion Methodist Church which was the home church of the Rogers Family. The:.
Bowlin's live on Bell Road in Duluth, Georgia.

Virginia Cofield lives on McGinnis Ferry Road near Shake Rag in a Sears-
Roebuck prefab house circa 1900-1910.

In Gwinnett County, Mr. Tom Johnson of Johnson Hardware in Norcross has
considerable knowledge of the Norcross area. His son, Edwin Johnson, iL a
collector of Civil War memorabilia and also is interested in the iocal

history of the area.
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J. Heard Summerour, former postmaster at Duluth, is the unofficial County
Historian for Gwirnett County. He residec at 3159 Highway 120 outside of

Duluth.

Mrs. Howard Hoffman has a great interest in the history of the area. She
_ Tives on the Neely Farm near Norcross.

Mr. Hope at the Suwanee Post Office has information on the Settles Creek area.

The Gwinnett County Historical Scciety is becoming increasingly active. Mr.
Summerour is involved in the society as is Anne Mae Lay (Phone: 449-1362).
Mrs. Lay also has information about the pre-Civil War house (Nesbitt House)
on the Hoffman or Neely Farm. )

Written reccrds on specific sites and structures can be found in the Cobb,
Forsyth, Gwinnett, and Fulton County Courthouses. There is a good run on the
Marietta Daily Journal in the Cobb County Public Library in Marietta. Because
the degree of historical awareness in Roswell is so high its history has been
well taken care of by individuals such as Emmett Rushin (Bus. Phone: 993-6498),
Janet Russell, Vice Chairman of the Roswell Historic Preservation Commission,
and Mrs. T. M. Ezzard, the City Historian. The History Room in the Presbyterian
Church is an excellent place to begin.

While Cobb County does not possess a historical society, the Cobb Landmarks
Society (Phone: 427-0751) may have information on sites along the Chattahoochee.
In Fulton Couniy the Atlanta Historical Society and Historian, Franklin Garrett,
were most helpful during the preparaticn of the report.
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